
 
 
 

SCRUTINY : GOVERNANCE, 
PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS CHANGE AND 

CORPORATE SERVICES 
 

4.00 pm TUESDAY, 12TH JANUARY, 2021 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this Meeting and a separate 
invitation will be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to  

Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used 

as outlined above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on 

(01685) 725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda 
can be found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Working Life Update   

 To consider report of the Interim Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

3 - 16 

4. Work Programme 2020-2021   

 To consider the attached report 
 

17 - 28 

5. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

6. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

7. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
COMPOSITION: Councillors:  T Skinner (Chair) 

                     G Lewis (Vice-Chair) 
  
 Councillors:   H R Jones, D Sammon, W R Smith and 

C T Jones 
 
Co-optees:    J Beard, C Payne and S Fureed 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Working Life Update  
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1  We have set Wellbeing Objectives for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, and how we 

intend to achieve these objectives is set out in our plan ‘Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in 
our Community’.  The focus of this report is on the wellbeing theme Working Life. 

 
1.2 The Council is committed to supporting people to live in safe well-connected communities 

where the developing infrastructure sustaining and improving both the built and natural 
environment; and where heritage, language and culture are valued and strengthened for 
future generations.  The Council also seeks to support people to develop skills and gain 
relevant qualifications to secure employment and to meet the changing needs of employers. 

 
1.3 Using the most recent performance information, this report establishes the current position 

for the wellbeing objective: People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the  
           needs of businesses, with a developing and safe infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an 

attractive destination.    
 
1.4 Annual review ensures that the outcomes clearly describe what the Working Life objective 

seeks to achieve.  The key long term outcomes for Working Life are: 
  
   Merthyr Tydfil realises its economic potential, with a skilled workforce and better 

employment opportunities; 

   We value and enjoy our built and natural environment, protecting and enhancing our 
heritage and cultural assets for current and future generations; and 

   We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others. 

 
1.5 This report also includes information requested by Committee Members focusing on the 

impact of the ongoing Coronavirus pandemic on the services; and on their ability to deliver 
against the outcomes laid down in Focus on the Future: wellbeing in our community. 

 

Date Written 17th December 2020 

Report Author Alyn Owen / Chris Long / Paul 
Lewis / Susan Gow 

Service Area Community Regeneration, Public 
Protection & Housing 

Committee Date 12th January 2021 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1  The content of this report to be discussed and performance information scrutinised  
 

2.2      Committee Members review and explore the response activities undertaken in relation to    
           the ongoing pandemic to seek assurance that appropriate support has been delivered for       
           communities/businesses 
 
2.3      Scrutiny Committee Members offer any appropriate feedback to enable officers to consider  
           when undertaking future service planning and delivery discussions. 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND  

Legislative Context 

3.1  The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 specifies that we must work to     

improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural wellbeing of Wales by maximising 

our contribution to the seven Wellbeing Goals.   
 

3.2  We must do this in accordance with the sustainable development principle, which means that 
we act in a manner that seeks to ensure the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs.  There are five ways 
of working that we need to do adopt in order to show that we have applied the sustainable 
development principle.  The five ways of working are: 

 

 Long Term  Prevention  Integrated 

 Collaboration  Involvement  

 
3.3 The Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 specifies that we must seek to improve 

the wellbeing of people who need care and support, carers who need support and for 
transforming social services in Wales.  The focus of this Act is on what matters to the person 
and how they can use their own strengths and resources to do those things, which is 
determined by an assessment that involves the person and the professional(s). 

 
           Strategic Context and Service Delivery  
 
          The Council is committed to delivering excellent services. It will do this by delivering its key 

strategies and through joint working with a range of partners. The key strategies that focus 
on delivering excellent services in Community Regeneration, Public Protection and Housing 
are: 

 Economic Growth Strategy (pending final approval); 

 Taf Bargoed Strategy (currently under development); 

 Destination Management Plan (currently being refocused); 

 Heritage Strategy (draft – currently under development); 

 Merthyr Tydfil Strategic Valley Hub Placemaking Plan 2019-2025 (adopted by Full 
Council – October 2020); 

 Cyfarthfa Plan (adopted by Full Council – November 2020); 

 Active Merthyr Plan; 

 The Active Travel Plan; 

 MTCBC Homelessness Strategy; 

 Cwm Taf Community Safety Plan ;  

 Workforce Development Plan;  

 The Town Centre Master Plan; 
Page 4

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2015/2/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/anaw/2014/4/contents


 The Crucible Master Plan; and 

 The Local Development Plan 2016-2023. 
 
3.4 With regards to the Town Centre Master Plan; following endorsement by Council a detailed 

consultation will be held in January 2021.  Development Funding has been secured through 
the WG Transforming Towns Programme for the Theatre Royal and Jols and funding has 
been secured from WG’s Transforming Towns Programme for the re-development of 
Howfields and Marsh House.  It is anticipated that both schemes will be complete by March 
2022. 
 

3.5 In relation to the Cyfarthfa Plan; a Special Purpose Vehicle has been established to lead 
on the delivery of the Cyfarthfa Plan.  The Cyfarthfa Foundation (SPV) has appointed 5 
Board Members to date.  A Cyfarthfa Working Group has been established which includes 
officers from The Cyfarthfa Foundation, Merthyr Tydfil Leisure Trust and MTCBC to discuss 
next stages in delivery and an MOU will be created.  The launch of the Cyfarthfa Plan will 
be held on the 12th January 2021.  
 

3.6 The department works collaboratively with other departments both within the Council, with 
external partners via the Public Service Board (PSB) and the Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB); with other local authorities on regional projects such as Cardiff and the Capital City 
Deal; as well as with multiple partner organisations across both the third and private sectors. 

 
3.7 The Council’s contribution to achieving the seven wellbeing goals is outlined in our plan     

[Focus on the Future: Wellbeing in our Community].  On the 4th April 2018, Full Council 

approved a revised version of the Plan, which reduced the number of wellbeing objectives 

from 9 to 4. The new objectives can be found in Appendix 1. 

3.8  The Chief Officer for Community Regeneration, Public Protection and Housing reports on the 

wellbeing theme Working Life.  The purpose of this report is to coordinate the performance 

information for this wellbeing objective and offer insights in the change of working practice 

linked to the wellbeing objective: People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet 

the needs of businesses; with a developing, safe infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an 

attractive destination.   

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1  The Council published its Annual Performance Report for 2019/2020 was published by the 

statutory deadline of 31st October 2020.  This report evaluated performance across all 
wellbeing objectives laid down within the corporate wellbeing plan: Focus on the Future.   

 
4.2  It is important to note this report covers activity between April 2019 and March 2020 so 

does not reflect activities which the Council was required to undertake to respond to the 
coronavirus pandemic. 
 

4.3  Our evaluation of performance in 2019/2020 was Adequate.  The rationale for this judgment 
is built upon findings showing a positive position in some work areas (e.g.) an increase in the 
percentage of working aged people with NVQ level 2 or above, developing a more skilled 
workforce to respond to vacancies arising within the labour market.  However, many key 
economic indicators remain below the Wales average (e.g.) the gross weekly pay for full-time 
workers in Merthyr Tydfil remains below the Welsh average.  Plans are under development 
to make improvements where required.  Other factors affecting the judgement are beyond 
the Council’s control impact on progress made during this timeframe included changes made 
by government, the lack of clarity about forthcoming changes relating to the UK’s withdrawal 
from the EU etc.  Page 5

https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/media/3775/mtcbc-focus-on-the-future-april-2018.pdf
https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/media/6133/annual-performance-report-2019-2020.pdf


 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The Working Life Strategy on a Page (SOAP) contains performance data for the selected 

local performance indicators over time to offer an opportunity to identify trends.  The Working 
Life SOAP is attached as Appendix 2.  PLEASE NOTE:  as a result of delays in Welsh 
Government processing some specific data sets; there are a number of indicators that 
currently have no data recorded against them for 2020-2021.  This is as a result of the 
requirement to prioritise responses to the ongoing pandemic.  This situation is being closely 
monitored and as soon as this data has been approved by Welsh Government; it will be 
integrated into the SOAP and circulated to Members.   

 
5.2 Members are advised that collection methods in relation to the anti-social behaviour data  

contained within the SOAP has recently changed.  The data was previously collected / 
collated using the ASBIT database; however, ASBIT came to an end around November 2019 
as a result of the software no longer being supported.  As a result of this change in practice; 
the data shown for 2019/2020 covers October to March, not the full year; whilst the 20/21 
data reflects the figures for the year to date.  Data is now collected using the NICHE Police 
database where new recording methods have been introduced to capture ASB stages as 
opposed to just the number of reported incidents.  This year (2020/2021); new categories 
were put into the case management inbox for ASB to include COVID19 breaches. This will 
undoubtedly affect the statistics considerably either way. Actual figures to go with the 
percentages for context are: 

 

Year Stage One Stage 2 / final 
warning 

2019/2020 79 24 

2020/2021 190 36 

 
5.3  The Annual Performance Report (APR) 2019/2020 provided an overview of the key corporate 

performance indicators.  The judgement allocated for 2019/2020 was Adequate; this 
judgment relates to the impact of the Council’s services/activities (the effect); rather than the 
effort put in to achieving impact (which we would judge as good).   

 
5.4 We have included the data as it appears in the Annual Performance Report in Table 1 (below), 

along with the reported data from the previous two years for context.  We had updated the 
table to show whether the indicator is national or local; this amendment aims to provide 
greater clarity on where the work undertaken by MTCBC contributes to the national position; 
or where the outcomes achieved are as result of MTCBC’s activity only (i.e.) MTCBC controls 
the project/programme.   
 
Type of 
Indicator 

Key Performance 
Indicators 

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 Trend over  
3 years 

National % of working age population in 
employment (Year ending 
March 2018) 
 
 

74% 72.2% 68.9% 

 

National % of working age population 
who are qualified to NVQ level 2 
and above 
 
 

66.2% 57.4% 59.9%  

 

74 72.2
68.9

66.2

57.4

59.9

Page 6



National % of population with no 
qualification 
 
 
 

16.4% 14.1% 16.0% 

 
 

National % of 16-18 year olds not in 
education, employment or 
training 
 
 

1.3% 1.1% 2.1% 

 
 

National Number of business births 
 
 
 

255 220 170 

 
 

National Number of business deaths 
 
 
 

165 190 160 

 
 

Local % of participants in employment 
upon leaving the EU funded 
programmes 
 
 
 

12.8% 23% 34% 

 
 

Local % of participants who gain a 
qualification on completion of an  
‘out of work’ training programme 
 
 
 

28.4% 22% 25% 

 
 

Local % of participants who gain a 
qualification on completion of an 
‘in work’ training programme 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

81.9% 87% 74% 

 
 

 
 Key:  Indicator demonstrates improvement 
   Indicator demonstrates decline 

 
5.5 There are a number of key projects which service areas are delivering to support and meet 

identified need.  Each of these projects has been established with full consideration being 
given to corporate and wider priorities; and the sustainable development principle (the five 
ways of working) have been utilised in all planning; delivery; monitoring and assessment 
activity. 

 
5.6 The Council was required to develop a Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan.  A 

fundamental aspect included within this Plan was the need lay out the steps the Council 
would take to support an effective economic recovery across the County Borough.   

 
We have provided a precis of the elements of this below for Committee Members information: 

 
 
 
 
 
  

  

16.4

14.1

16

1.3

1.1

2.1

255
220

170

165
190 160

12.8 23

34

28.4

22

25

81.9

87

74

Page 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.0 RESPONSE TO INFORMATION REQUEST OUTLINED BY THE COMMITTEE 
 
6.1 The Committee requested that officers to provide specific information outlining the impact the 

ongoing Coronavirus has had on services delivery.  Members also required an update on the 
work undertaken by the services to respond to the ongoing pandemic; more specifically 
around the support to sustain local businesses throughout several period of 
restrictions/lockdown. 

 
 NEW REGULATIONS 

6.2 Regulations were introduced by Welsh Government in March 2020 in response to this 
‘serious and imminent threat to public health’ in Wales.  In order that the Council could swiftly 
and effectively enforce these regulations; delegated authority was given to officers from 
Trading Standards, Environmental Health and Licensing by the Deputy Chief Executive in 
accordance with paragraph 16(a) of Part II of Scheme B of the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council Constitution. 

 
6.3 The Authority implemented an enforcement campaign to ensure only businesses that were 

permitted to open were doing so and that these premises implemented social distancing 
measures to protect customers from the virus.   

 
 KEY ACTIVITIES 

6.4 As Welsh Government reviewed legislation on closures, businesses began to re-open.  
Council officers’ roles varied between enforcement and business support/advice. The initial 
stage was to engage and explain.  To support businesses to manage the major challenge of 
re-opening the hospitality trade (initially outdoors but moving to indoors), officers held two 

WORKING LIFE / ECONOMIC RECOVERY – Recovery & Improvement Priority 
         

                                     
 

Develop a 15-year 
Economic Vision for the 

County Borough 

Realign the Economic 
Growth Strategy and 
create an Economic 

Recovery Board 

Analyse business 
activities and services, 

including a specific focus 
on Covid-19, to secure 

improved economic 
outcomes 

Develop and grow 
connections between the 

business sector and 
Merthyr Tydfil’s education 

providers 

 

Changes and Benefits Noted: Next Steps 

 Stakeholder consultation is progressing to inform 
future decision-making linked to Economic Vision 

 Conclude Phase One of the stakeholder evaluation; 
and use findings to develop draft Vision and 
Economic Recovery Plan 

 Establishment of Economic Recovery Board to 
ensure oversight of work undertaken on the new 
Economic Recovery Plan 

 Further develop the Economic Recovery Board 
developing a Work Programme relating to the 
finalised Economic Recovery Plan 

 Working with Revenues & Benefits Section to co-
ordinate business support has secured 
£22,449,264 for local business sustainability 

 Ensure all local Businesses are fully aware and 
supported  to receive as much direct grant aid to 
ensure Business survival 

 A Business, Education and Training Partnership 
(BETP) has been developed to grow the 
connections between the business sector and 
Merthyr Tydfil’s Education provision  

 Develop a work-stream to enable children and 
young people to have the opportunity to 
experience wider employment opportunities 
through partnership 

 

Page 8



trade seminars with over 60 licensees attending.  Additionally, two dedicated, sector-specific 
Facebook groups were set up to ensure up-to-date information and guidance was 
communicated to businesses.   

 
6.5 Inspections were conducted which included evening and weekend work in conjunction with 

partner agencies such as South Wales Police.  Intelligence-led enforcement campaigns were 
also conducted in specific trade sectors which included supermarkets.    Public Protection 
Services are still enforcing legislation and have been given additional powers that could result 
in the closure of premises or directions e.g. to stop an event taking place. The role of Public 
Protection Services has been seen as a vital service in controlling the spread of the virus. 
This role and importance will increase as local lockdowns occur. 

 
6.6 The Coronavirus has, and is continuing to have, an unprecedented impact on the economy; 

this added to the challenges already faced across Wales such as high levels of poverty; 
continuing uncertainty around Brexit; etc. whilst also presenting new, unanticipated demands 
on services which had to be responded to.   

 
6.7 The Council has undertaken a number of actions to support the Town Centre to return to 

trade safely.  These tasks were completed collaboratively; officers working closely with local 
businesses and South Wales Police to allocate PPE; implement signage and floor markings 
to support social distancing and pedestrian flow.  Barriers were removed in the central Bus 
Station; again to support more effective social distancing.  Working with St Tydfil’s Shopping 
Centre and Merthyr Tydfil’s Business Improvement District (BID); a campaign was run to 
encourage people to safely return to the Town Centre.  Merthyr Tydfil’s BID has ensured 
support is offered to the independent traders within the Town Centre.   

 
To date; the BID has supported 53 independent Town Centre businesses and has provided 
them with the following: 

 

 350 visors; 

 100 sneeze guards; 

 500 bottles of hand sanitiser; 

 1000 ‘Keep your Distance’ floor stickers; and 

 100 Welsh Government Covid-19 information posters. 
 
6.8 Emergency Planning played a key role as part of the South Wales Local Resilience Forum. 

Planning on worst case scenarios, emergency plans were put in place assessing the impact 
of excessive deaths and its effect on mortuaries, registrars, cemeteries, and crematoria. 
Working with internal and external partners, plans were put in place to meet any increased 
pressure on services.  

 
6.9 Environmental Health Officers have been at the forefront of ‘Test, Trace and Protect’ acting 

as professional leads first for the local contact tracing service and then as members of the 
regional CTM team. The demands on the service have been significant with a small team    
working evenings, weekends and throughout bank holidays to try to keep our residents safe. 
Officers have worked alongside Public Health Wales, the Health and Safety Executive and 
others to investigate and control incidents; such as Kepak and General Dynamics; as well as 
investigating numerous clusters in the community resulting from poor working practices, or 
cases and contacts failing to self-isolate including returning holiday makers.  They have 
supported Council and privately run care homes to ensure that our most vulnerable citizens 
are protected, with over 1,533 (at 14.12.20) contacts being made since the beginning of the 
pandemic. As schools returned they have provided on-going support to education colleagues.   

 

Page 9



6.10 To meet the emerging needs identified, Welsh Government made a number of grants and 
funding streams available; with the Council being required to co-ordinate and deliver these 
on a local level.  Further details of this can be found in Appendix 3 of this report. 

 
6.11 As part of the Phase One response to the pandemic; Welsh Government issued guidance 

that mandated local authorities to place all those rough sleeping or at risk of rough sleeping 
into temporary accommodation. To enable the department to do this, we block booked rooms 
at several Bed & Breakfasts and one hotel in the area. We were also assisted by Merthyr 
Valley Homes (MVH) who provided us with eight units to be used as temporary 
accommodation - in order to assist with ‘moving on’, MVH have now transferred the majority 
of these to permanent tenancies.  

 
6.12 As a result of the changing guidance the housing department has seen the need for one bed 

accommodation increase exponentially. To put it into context in 2019/20 we were only able 

to meet 7% of our need for this accommodation type which equated to 47 one bed general 

need properties. We had 95 households in temporary accommodation all of whom need to 

be moved on into permanent accommodation.  Where we have placed a household in 
temporary accommodation, we have claimed the monies from Welsh Government from the 
£10million Phase 1 funding. 

 
6.13 As part of our Phase 2 recovery planning we have applied for additional monies from Welsh 

Government to secure some additional units of ‘move on’ accommodation as well as some 
intensive support for those individuals in B&B. The following schemes have secured grant 
funding: 

 

 £867,616  for eight modular homes to be provided by MVH; 

 £37,100 as part of a regional bid to provide support to individuals with substance and 

mental health issues 

 £40,000 for a private landlord to convert a terraced property into two one bed flats 

 
All these schemes need to be completed or almost completed by Wednesday 31st March 
2021. 

 
6.14 We continue to hold regular meetings with our partners to share good practice and to ensure 

support is available to individuals in Bed & Breakfasts, to continue to work in partnership to 
achieve the best outcomes for those individuals who have become homeless during the 
pandemic.  

 
6.15 Some of the key data linked to the coronavirus response activities has been included below: 
 

  

             

 

               

 

              
 

Council advice and support around 
business closures 

 
Number of joint visits made by 
Environmental Health; Trading 

Standards and Licensing officers 

 
Number of fixed penalty notices 
issued by the Council in relation 

to business closures/ social 
distancing 

2,836 423 37 
 

  

Page 10



 

 
 

 
 

Number of Prohibition  
Notices issued 

 

Number of Improvement 
Notices issued 

Number of Business Closure 
Notices Issued 

2 7 
 

3 
 

 

 
               

           

 
       

          
 

Transforming Towns Thematic 
Covid-19 response grant – 
percentage spent to date 

 

 
Local Sustainable Transportable 

Measures Covid-19 Fund – 
percentage spent to date 

 
Total number businesses in 
Merthyr Tydfil supported to 
secure funding (plus value) 

Awarded: £365,000 
Spend to Date:  £50,051 

Awarded: £414,000 
Spend to Date:  £42,675 

2,299 
£22,499,315 

 
 

 

 

 
Number of households in temporary 

accommodation 
(as at w/c 09.11.20) 

Total funding secured to enable provision of 
intensive support for Phase 2 of Recovery 

Status at 18 December 2020 Status at 18 December 2020 
Total:  127 

Hostels = 20 

Bed & Breakfast = 62 
 

HMOs = 9 
 

Private Lease = 4 
 

Other supported TA = 31 
 

 

£867,616 MMC x 8 units MVH 
 

£40,000 PRS project 2  x 1 bed flats 
 

£678,326  additional 5 x MMC units with MVH 
 

£37,100 regional outreach project led by RCT 
 

 
 
 WHAT HAS CHANGED & WHAT LESSONS HAVE BEEN LEARNED 

6.16  A key lesson learned has been that the service areas upon which this report focuses; and 
indeed Council as a whole, has been able to positively respond and work differently.  
Accessing the support available as part of the Council’s digital agenda (e.g. through the 
purchase of Microsoft Teams licenses), officers have been able to work remotely; stay 
securely connected; and limit risk from the pandemic whilst also ensuring continued service 
delivery to the public. 

 

6.17 Public Protection services such as Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing 
have had to reprioritise workloads to commit to the new additional statutory duties relating to 
business opening and COVID-19 measures.    

 

6.18 In order to meet the demands of the pandemic many of the day to day services such as food 
inspections have had to be scaled right back but support has been provided to food business 
virtually so that they can produce and deliver food safely, particularly as many have changed 
their business models. 

 

 

ANGEN GWELLA 

 

IMPROVEMENT NEEDED 

CLOSED 
Until further notice 
 

COVID-19 

Page 11



6.19 Public Protection services have had to react and incorporate new emergency powers and 
carry out enforcement work whilst ensuring staff are protected in what could be high risk 
environments.  Together with Trading Standards and Licensing Officers, Environmental 
Health Officers have played a critical role in enforcing the new emergency legislation.  

 

6.20 Partnership working has been key.  Integration and collaboration have been the cornerstone 
of the work undertaken by the service areas producing this report.  We have changed the 
way we work across the organisation in many cases further developing working relationships 
to achieve unforeseen benefits (e.g.) closer working arrangements between our service areas 
and the Revenues and Benefits team has enabled us to more effectively meet the needs of 
local businesses.  We plan to sustain and continue to develop this work. 

 

6.21 The well-developed working relationships with key external partners and stakeholders have 
enhanced the teams’ responsiveness to the challenges faced.  The breadth of work 
undertaken linked to managing the requirements the pandemic response introduced has 
been on a huge scale and largely reactive at the start of the process 

 
 
 

7.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
7.1 By 2022, our ambition is for: 

 

 MTCBC to improve the pace of change/recovery in relation to the local economy, 
recognising that this cannot be achieved without the support and participation of key 
partners and businesses; 

 To develop Merthyr’s extended landscape and built heritage into an international quality 
visitor destination and experience;  

 To have developed a well-connected Economic Growth partnership where information 
and outcomes are jointly owned and shared.  By achieving this goal, we aim to maximise 
the positive connections to produce positive results;  

 To develop the Town Centre as a Strategic Hub as part of the Cardiff City Region Metro 
focusing on transport infrastructure, physical regeneration and place-making; and 

 To be making positive progress against the tasks and actions set down in the Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement Plan.  

 
 

8.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
8.1  Further develop the Community Regeneration, Public Protection and Housing Board ensuring 

departmental connectivity is at the forefront of its development.  
 

8.2 Conclude the staged development of the strategic documents and plans over the coming 
months including the Town Centre Masterplan and the Cyfarthfa Heritage Area Masterplan.  

 
8.3 Following two successful workshop sessions; we will further develop the Economic Growth 

Partnership ensuring partnership ownership and engagement.   
 
8.4 Further develop the Economic Growth Partnership ensuring partnership ownership and 

engagement is of real benefit to partners. 
 
8.5 Further develop the Economic Recovery Board ensuring the Board maintains oversight of 

the work in relation to the Economic Recovery element of the Council’s Recovery, 
Transformation and Improvement Plan. 

 Page 12



8.6 Complete work on the Merthyr Tydfil Central Bus Interchange. 
 
8.7 Continue to ensure all local Businesses are fully aware and supported to receive as much 

direct grant aid to ensure Business survival. 
 
8.8 Continue to positively respond to the requirement’s laid down by both the UK and Welsh 

Government in relation to the provision of effective support, advice and guidance to 
communities in relation to the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
8.9 Continue to positively progress all tasks and actions within the Working Life/Economic 

Recovery project plan supporting delivery of the Council’s Recovery, transformation and 
Improvement Plan. 

 

 
 

9.0    CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES/WELLBEING GOALS 

 
9.1 The improvement activities identified in this report directly contribute to our wellbeing 

objective: 
 

 Best Start to Life: Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

 

9.2 The planned next steps for Focus on the Future and Tackling Poverty will ensure that the 
activities of the Learning Department will more robustly impact on the wellbeing objective: 

 

 Best Start to Life: Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with 
the skills they need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 
 

Living Well: People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where 
they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  

 
9.3 With regards to the Council’s contribution to the national wellbeing goals; this has been 

captured via an overview of quantitative data, produced as a series of case studies which 
can be found in the Annual Performance Report 2018-19 that was published by 31 October 
2020 in line with the statutory deadline. 
 
 

 
 
ALYN OWEN 
CHIEF OFFICER FOR COMMUNITY 
REGENERATION, PUBLIC PROTECTION 
& HOUSING 

 
 

COUNCILLOR GERAINT THOMAS 
CABINET MEMBER FOR 

REGENERATION & PUBLIC 
PROTECTION  

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) 

Date 
Document Location 

   

   

   
 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
Page 13

https://www.merthyr.gov.uk/media/6133/annual-performance-report-2019-2020.pdf


Appendix 1 
 
 

Corporate Wellbeing Plan Focus on the Future:  

Confirmed themes and wellbeing objectives for 2018/19 
 
 
 

Theme Wellbeing Objective 

Best Start 
Children and young people have the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners 
and confident individuals. 

Working Life 
People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet 
the needs of businesses, with a developing safe 
infrastructure making Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination 

Environmental 
Wellbeing 

Communities protect, enhance and promote our environment 
and countryside 

Living Well 
People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical 
and mental health. 

Page 14



  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCOUNTABLE OFFICER 

Chief Officer, Community Regeneration 
 

People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses with a developing, safe infrastructure making 

Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination 

How will Merthyr Tydfil CBC work? 

Merthyr Tydfil realises its economic potential, 
with a skilled workforce and better 

employment opportunities 

We value and enjoy our built and natural 
environment, protecting and enhancing our 
heritage and cultural assets for current and 

future generations 

We have strong, resilient and supportive 
communities where people take 

responsibility for their own actions and 
how they affect others 

Key Performance Indicators 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 

Target Achieved Target Achieved Target Achieved Target Achieved Target Achieved Target 
Participants who are in employment after leaving a programme 81 71 81 100 241 198 210 300 277 99 TBC 
Participants who gain a qualification at the end of an ‘out of work’ 
programme 119 165 119 119 212 166 34 216 48 44 49 
Participants who gain a qualification at the end of an ‘in work’ 
programme 185 97 185 281 184 241 171 312 176 46 168 
Number of buildings developed as part of the business start-up 
process     3 4 4 4 3 8 4 3 4 
Number of community enterprises supported in asset transfer 
opportunities     2 3 2 3  2 2  2 

Data 
Pending   

Percentage of inward investment enquiries which become active 
businesses     5 5 5 8 5 29 5 3 5 
Number of social enterprises where growth/development opportunities 
are identified     50% 66% 50% 60% 50% 66% 50% 

Data 
pending 50% 

Number of visits to the 5 key attractions within Merthyr Tydfil 

        618,000 825,501 636,540 Pending 655,636 
Data 

Pending 675,305 
Restore 9 buildings within the Pontmorlais Heritage Area         3 0 3 0 3 2   
**  NEW FOR 2019/20 **   Percentage of ASB perpetrators who 
reoffend within a 6-month period reaching Stage 2             

Setting 
baseline 19%  19% 

30.4%  
(at Qtr 2) TBC  

**  NEW FOR 2019/2020 **   Value of fraud detected and resolved 

              

No 
target 

set £21,228  TBC 
The percentage of those who present as homeless who are relieved of 
homelessness 

N/A 
s73 - 178 
s75 - 5* N/A 33% 34% 31% 34% 31% 34% 

Data 
delayed due 

to Covid TBC 
Percentage of households threatened with homelessness successfully 
prevented from becoming homeless (PAM/012) 

N/A 61% 60% 53% 60% 57% 61% 49% 61% 

Data 
delayed due 

to Covid 63% 
Percentage of empty private sector properties brought back into use 
during the year through direct action by the local authority (PAM/013) N/A 

6.86% 
(40/583) N/A 6.60% 3% 7% 6% 7.09 6% Annual data 6% 

The percentage of food businesses that are broadly compliant with 
food hygiene N/A 93.49% N/A 92.46% 93.11% 93.00% 93.02% 93.17% 92.80% Annual data 92.90% 
** NEW FOR 2019/20 **   Number of People attending or participating 
in arts, culture or heritage activities at least 3 times a year     

None 
set 71% - 

Biannual 
data 70% 60% - 

Biannual 
data TBC 

 

WORKING LIFE Appendix 2 

P
age 15



Appendix 3 
 
Grants/Funding Update: 

 
Our Economic Regeneration and Revenues Team worked with local businesses to access various 
funding streams made available via Welsh and UK Governments to which they were eligible to apply.  
The details of the number of local businesses applying for funding and the total grant payments 
received to date can be found below: 

 
Transforming Towns Thematic Covid-
19 Response Grant  

 

 Local Sustainable Transportable Measures 
Covid-19 Fund 

Amount Awarded:  £365,000 

 

 Amount Awarded:  £414,000 

Purpose of Grant: 
Application covers: 

- Public Realm Improvements / Business 
Support Grants which include outdoor 
furniture for businesses, capital equipment to 
support business recovery and capital 
equipment to support future event delivery;  

- Meanwhile Scheme to help establish further 
meanwhile space for businesses to operate 
from within the town centre; 

- Town Centre Business Digital Project to 
help focus on opportunities to re-introduce 
Geosense and develop the digital agenda in 
Merthyr Tydfil;  

- Development of land for outdoor hospitality 
allowing the exploration of options of land for 
outdoor use; and 

- PPE and the Outdoor Furniture Grant 
opportunities have also been extended to 
Treharris Town Centre. 

 

 Purpose of Grant: 
Application covers: 

- Social Distancing Programme which enabled the 
installation of signage and floor marking across the 
town centre to help pedestrian flow and the removal of 
barriers within the current Bus Station to support 
social distancing.  

- Feasibility studies funding video analysis to 
identify pre-Covid spatial distribution and inform and 
support experimental intervention and monitor post-
scheme outcomes.  

- The capital purchase of a Civic Parking 
Enforcement (CPE) camera van to aid enforcement.  

- The consideration of improved active travel links 
in and around the town centre 

 

Spend to Date:  
 

  
 

£15,051 (13.71%) 

 Spend to Date:  
 

  
 

£42,675 (10.30%) 
 

Balance Remaining:  £314,949 

 

 Balance Remaining:  £371,325 

 
Funding for the two grants shown above must be spent by 31 March 2021. 
 
Breakdown of grants secured by Economic Development Team: 

 
 Number of 

Businesses 
Supported 

Amount Secured  
to Date 

Freelancer Fund 26 £65,000 

Start-Up Grant 41 £102,500 

Discretionary Funding 90 £170,000 

Outdoor Equipment Grant 7 £50,051 

 Page 16



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached Forward Work Programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

Date Written 16th December 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 12th January 2021 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4



 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

 

 

Page 18



3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 
that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 
 

 

Page 19



Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 
 

Page 20



Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 22



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Date / 
Timing 

Overarching Item Cabinet Member & 
Officer(s)  

Scrutiny Focus  Cross-Cutting Strategies 
and Plans 

22nd 
September 

2020 

Coronavirus Update – 

Response and Transition 

to Recovery 

 Cabinet Member – 
Governance; 
Performance; Business 
Change & Corporate 
Services 

 Head of Protection & 
Safety Services 

 

Scrutiny & Challenge:   Local councils have faced 

unprecedented events during 2020 as a result of the 

pandemic and, more specifically, the impact of the 

prolonged period of lockdown.  
 

The Committee seeks a report that will enable them to 

review how the Council has responded to these 

circumstances; and how it has worked differently to 

manage/mitigate identified risks.  The report should 

acknowledge what the Council did well, what 

opportunities were identified and seized and what lessons 

have been learned; showing how these will be used to 

take the next required steps in the short and long-term. 

Recovery, Transformation 

and Improvement Plan 

Draft Committee Work 

Programme 2018/19 

 

Committee Chair & 

Committee Members 

The Committee to discuss the draft Work Programme and 

to officially agree and sign off the Work Programme for 

2020-2021 

 

Recovery, Transformation 

and Improvement Plan 

(Governance) 

13th October 
2020 

Corporate Wellbeing 
Plan: Environmental 
Wellbeing theme 

 Cabinet Member – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning & Countryside 

 Chief Officer – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning & Countryside 

 

Item deferred from 2019/2020 Work Programme (as a 
result of the pandemic) 
At the scrutiny meeting held on April 2019, Committee 
Members requested the Environmental Wellbeing theme 
within the Corporate Plan be presented at Governance 
Scrutiny, with a specific focus on the following elements: 
 

“It has been over 12 months since new measures were 
introduced.  Members want to explore: 

 whether there has been any increase of incidents of 
fly-tipping.  

 whether costs have increased?   

 does policy require change? (e.g. black bin charge; 
waste transfer note charge etc.)”. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
 
Wales Towards Zero Waste 

P
age 23



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

The Committee will, through questioning; seek to 
understand the impact of the pandemic on services 
officers deliver.  Members aim to identify how lessons 
learned will help inform and shape services going forward 
to ensure identified needs can continue to be met in safe 
and responsive ways. 
 

Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21 

 

Committee Chair & 
Committee Members 

To review the items due to be presented at the next 
Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors 
who will be drafting the report. 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

24th 
November 

2020 

Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan:  Living Well Theme 

 Cabinet Member – Social 
Services 

 Chief Officer – Social 
Services 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The Committee seeks a report 
outlining progress made against the Living Well theme 
within the Corporate Plan.  The report will outline 
progress made against the objective set down under this 
theme; and will identify challenges faced and 
opportunities identified and actioned. 
 

Additionally; the Committee seeks to understand the 
impact of the pandemic on officers delivering both 
Children’s and Adult social services and of the services 
users seeking support.  Members also seek to identify how 
lessons learned will help inform and shape services going 
forward to ensure identified needs can continue to be 
met in safe and responsive ways. 
 

Focus on the Future – 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
 
Social Services and 
Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 
ACRF Report 2019-2020 

Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21 

 

Committee Chair & 
Committee Members 

To review the items due to be presented at the next 
Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors 
who will be drafting the report. 
 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 24



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

12th January 
2021 

Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan:  Working Life 

Theme 

 Cabinet Member – 
Community 
Regeneration & Public 
Protection 

 Chief Officer – 
Community 
Regeneration; Public 
Protection & Housing 

 Head of Housing & 
Community 
Regeneration 

 Head of Protection & 
Safety Services 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The Committee seeks a report 
outlining progress made against the Working theme 
within the Corporate Plan.  The report will outline 
progress made against the objective set down under this 
theme; and will identify challenges faced and 
opportunities identified and actioned. 
 

Additionally; the Committee seeks to understand the 
impact of the pandemic on a wide range of services: 
Housing and Homelessness; Economic Development & 
Business Support; Protection & Safety Services; Sports 
Development/ Heritage & Culture services so Members 
can clearly identify how lessons learned will inform and 
shape activities going forward.  The Committee also seeks 
to understand how the impact of lockdown and 
subsequent lessons learned will support wider economic 
recovery across the County Borough. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 
 
Economic Growth Strategy 

Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21 

 

Committee Chair & 
Committee Members 

To review the items due to be presented at the next 
Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors 
who will be drafting the report. 
 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

9th February 
2021 

Corporate Wellbeing 

Plan:  Best Start Theme 

 Cabinet Member – 
Education 

 Chief Officer – Education 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The Committee seeks a report 
outlining progress made against the Best Start theme 
within the Corporate Plan.  The report will outline 
progress made against the objectives set down under this 
theme; and will identify challenges faced and 
opportunities identified and actioned. 
 

Additionally; the Committee seeks to understand the 
impact of the pandemic on officers delivering Education; 
early years and childcare; youth and adult education 
services.  Members seek to identify how lessons learned 
will help inform and shape services going forward to 
ensure identified needs can continue to be met in safe 
and responsive ways. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 
 

P
age 25



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

9th February 
2021 

Agile Working Policy  Chief Executive 

 Head of HR 

 Organisational 
Development Manager 

Oversight and Scrutiny:  Committee Members have 
requested a short report be brought before them relating 
to the Agile Working policy that was approved at the Full 
Council meeting on 7th October 2020. 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 
 
Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 
 

Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21 

Committee Chair & 
Committee Members 

To review the items due to be presented at the next 
Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors 
who will be drafting the report. 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

23rd March 
2021 

Refocused Statement of 

Wellbeing and Corporate 

Plan – Focus on the 

Future: wellbeing in our 

community 

 Cabinet Member – 
Governance, 
Performance, Business 
Change & Corporate 
Services 

 Head of Corporate 
Services 

Scrutiny & Challenge:   The Council is required to meet its 
statutory duty of refocusing and publishing its Statement 
of Wellbeing and Corporate Wellbeing Plan annually.  
Committee Members are required to scrutinise both of 
these documents to review how well the Council is 
meeting its requirements against the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 

Focus on the Future – 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
 
Economic Growth Strategy 
 

The impact of Council 

Tax Debt Collection 

Process & Universal 

Credit on Tackling 

Poverty  

 To be confirmed Scrutiny & Challenge: Following a visit to Citizens Advice 
Bureau; a recommendation was made by the Committee 
Chair to further explore this topic.  A CAB representative 
will be invited to attend to give a report on the impact of 
the processes and outline some of the issues people face 
within communities across the County Borough. 
 
Additionally; the Committee wants to understand the 
impact of the pandemic on CAB services. Members seek 
to identify how lessons learned will help inform and shape 
services going forward to ensure identified needs can 
continue to be met in safe and responsive ways. 

Focus on the Future: 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

P
age 26

http://mtcbcelecreg.merthyr.gov.uk:9070/documents/s51086/Committee%20Report.pdf?LLL=0


Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

23rd March 
2021 

Committee Work 

Programme 2020/21 

 Committee Chair & 
Committee Members 

To review the items due to be presented at the next 
Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the 
Committee’s expectations are available to report authors 
who will be drafting the report. 

Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 

4th May 2021 

Report on Service 

Charges in relation to 

waste bins 

 Cabinet Member – 
Neighbourhood Services 

 Chief Officer – 
Neighbourhood Services, 
Planning & Countryside 

Members have requested the report on black bin 
charges that is being presented in Neighbourhood 
Services on 12th April 2021 be presented at 
Governance Scrutiny Committee 4th May 2021. 

Focus on the Future – 
wellbeing in our community 
 
Recovery, Transformation 
and Improvement Plan 
(Governance) 
 
Wales Towards Zero Waste 
Strategy 

Additional topics for consideration 

Topic Cabinet Member & 
Officer(s) 

Description Scheduled 

Local Authority 
Support to the Third 
Sector Services 

 Chair of 
Governance 
Scrutiny Committee 

 Chief Officer – 
Community 
Regeneration;  

 Head of Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

 EU & External 
Funding Manager 

This item was originally received as a result of a WAO report. Subsequent to the item 
being discussed at the scrutiny meeting an email was sent to the Chief Executive and 
the Cabinet Portfolio Member. As a result of scrutiny’s involvement a report was 
submitted to the Governance Services Scrutiny Committee meeting on 13th February.  

 

P
age 27



Governance, Performance, Business Change, and Corporate Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/21 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 

 
 
 

Additional topics for consideration 

Topic Cabinet Member & 
Officer(s) 

Description Scheduled 

Human Resources  Cabinet Member – 
Governance, 
Performance, 
Business Change & 
Corporate Services 

 Head of Human 
Resources 

  

Following updates received during 2019/2020; Committee Members request officers 
return to the Committee to offer further updates on the current status with particular 
reference being made to the following areas: 

 The capability process; 

 A breakdown of where SPODs; 

 An update on work-based stress and the Council’s response to this; 

 A breakdown of the current situation in relation to agency workers 
 

Additionally, the Committee is aware the Human Resources Team has undertaken 
significant work to support the change of working practice for officers across the 
Council to work remotely/agilely. 

 

Domestic Abuse 
and Sexual Violence 

 Safer Merthyr 
Tydfil/ New 
Pathways  

Members requested a report outlining the impact of domestic abuse and sexual 
violence on local people.  In relation to sexual violence, the Committee should outline 
the impact of sexual violence on communities (i.e.) STI’s; pregnancies; impact on 
mental health and offer basic detail on the support structure available for victims. 

 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 

 Chief Executive 
Officer 

 All Chief Officers 

Members have requested an update on progress made against the priority actions laid 
down in the Council’s Recovery, Transformation and Improvement Plan.   

 

P
age 28


	Agenda
	3 Working Life Update
	4 Work Programme 2020-2021
	Appendix 1


